
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

EAST SUSSEX HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 
TUESDAY, 7 MARCH 2023 
 
2.30 PM COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Keith Glazier, East Sussex County Council (Chair) 

Councillor Carl Maynard, East Sussex County Council 
Councillor John Ungar, East Sussex County Council 
Councillor Trevor Webb, East Sussex County Council 
Councillor Andy Batsford, Hastings Borough Council 
Councillor Mrs Pam Doodes, Wealden District Council 
Jessica Britton, NHS Sussex 
Dr Stephen Pike, NHS Sussex 
Vacancy - NHS Sussex 
Mark Stainton, Director of Adult Social Care 
Darrell Gale, Director of Public Health 
Alison Jeffery, Director of Children's Services 
Veronica Kirwan, Healthwatch East Sussex 
Joanne Chadwick-Bell, East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust 
 

INVITED OBSERVERS 
WITH SPEAKING RIGHTS 

Councillor Peter Diplock, Eastbourne Borough Council 
Councillor Emily O'Brien, Lewes District Council 
Councillor John Barnes MBE, Rother District Council 
Becky Shaw, Chief Executive, ESCC 
John Willett, Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner 
Mark Matthews, East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service 
Geraldine Des Moulins, Voluntary and Community Sector 
representative 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1.   Minutes of meeting of Health and Wellbeing Board held on 13 December 2022  (Pages 

3 - 8) 
 

2.   Apologies for absence   
 

3.   Disclosure by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda   
 

4.   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
end of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, wherever 
possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they must state 
the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being considered 
urgently 

 
5.   Integration programme and Shared Delivery Plan development update  (Pages 9 - 54) 

 
Report by Executive Managing Director, East Sussex, NHS Sussex and Director of 
Adult Social Care, East Sussex County Council. 
 

6.   Healthwatch East Sussex - Eastbourne Listening Tour report  (Pages 55 - 80) 
Report by Healthwatch East Sussex. 
 



 

 

7.   Building for our Future and ESHT hospital redevelopments  (Pages 81 - 82) 
 
Report by Director of Transformation and Improvement, East Sussex Healthcare NHS 
Trust. 
 

8.   Pharmacy Provision in East Sussex  (Pages 83 - 86) 
Report by the Director of Public Health. 
 

9.   Work programme  (Pages 87 - 88) 
 

10.   Any other items previously notified under agenda item 4   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 27 February 2023 
 
Contact Martin Jenks, Senior Scrutiny Adviser,  
01273 481327 
Email: martin.jenks@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, 
this meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived. The live 
broadcast is accessible at: www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


 
 
 

 

EAST SUSSEX HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board held at Council 
Chamber, County Hall, Lewes on 13 December 2022. 
 

 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT Councillor Keith Glazier (Chair)  

Councillor John Ungar, Councillor Trevor Webb, Jessica 
Britton, Mark Stainton, Darrell Gale, Alison Jeffery, John 
Routledge and Charlotte O'Brien 

  

INVITED OBSERVERS PRESENT Councillor Andy Batsford, Councillor Emily O'Brien, 
Councillor John Barnes MBE and Becky Shaw 

 

Presenting Officers  Chris Robson, Independent Chair, East Sussex 

Safeguarding Children Partnership 

     Vicky Smith, Programme Director, East Sussex Health 

and Social Care Transformation 

Graham Evans, Head of Public Health Intelligence 

 

 

23. MINUTES OF MEETING OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD HELD ON 29 
SEPTEMBER 2022  

 

23.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2022 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

 

24. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

24.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Carl Maynard, Councillor Pam 
Doodes, Joe Chadwick-Bell, ESHT (Charlotte O’Brien substituting) and Mark Matthews, 
ESFRS. 

 

25. DISCLOSURE BY ALL MEMBERS PRESENT OF PERSONAL INTERESTS IN 
MATTERS ON THE AGENDA  

 

25.1 There were no disclosures of interests. 

 

26. URGENT ITEMS  

 

26.1 There were none. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

27. EAST SUSSEX SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP (ESSCP) ANNUAL 
REPORT 2021/22  

 

27.1 The Board considered a report on the East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership 
(ESSCP) Annual Report for 2021-2022, which focuses on partnership learning, impact, 
evidence and assurance. 

27.2 The Chair commented that it was re-assuring that all the systems are working well and 
thanked the Independent Chair for a clear and easy to read report. There were no questions 
raised by the Board on the report. 

27.3 The Board RESOLVED to note the East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership 
Annual Report for 2021-2022. 

 

28. EAST SUSSEX JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA) UPDATE  

 

28.1 The Board considered an update report on the East Sussex Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) and the future direction of the JSNA. 

28.2 The Board asked if all the information currently available on East Sussex in Figures 
(ESiF) will be available on the new web site. 

28.3 Graham Evans, Head of Public Health Intelligence confirmed that the intention is that all 
the information currently available on ESiF will be available on the new web site. 

28.4 The Board asked how the cost of living crisis and the resultant pressures on housing, 
food and dietary needs would be taken into account in the JSNA. 

28.5 Darrell Gale, Director of Public Heath outlined that there may be some direct impacts of 
these changes but the impact on health and wellbeing might not be the same for everyone. The 
changes will be reflected in the data which will be produced at the District or Borough level, 
ward level and for lower super output areas. Graham Evans added that ESiF will change in 
future to allow profiling to be undertaken at the local level which will include indicators that track 
the cost of living and benefits. The data available will include qualitative and quantitative 
information. Cllr O’Brien outlined that District councils hold some qualitative data from cost of 
living summits which could be provided to the Public Health team. 

28.6 The Board questioned whether dementia should be included in the JSNA framework as 
it did not appear to be mentioned in it. 

28.7 Darrell Gale acknowledged that dementia had been overlooked in the JSNA framework 
and confirmed that it will be amended to include dementia. 

28.8 The Board commented that equalising life expectancy is seen as being a long-term goal 
and asked what progress there had been with short term and interim measures. 

28.9 Darrell Gale outlined that as well as life expectancy it is also important to measure 
quality of life as well. There are some shorter-term markers in behavioural things regarding life 
expectancy, but there is more work to be done on these measures including at a national level 
such as the work of Marmot on inequalities and the life course model. There have been some 
recent changes in life expectancy graph in a downward direction (e.g. due to the impact of 
Covid and the impact on the health care system) and also some backward looking work. 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

Graham Evans added that there is some work being carried out on healthy life expectancy 
based on the average age when people change from being in good health to not being in good 
health as a measure of quality of life. There is a statistic being developed on the amount of time 
people are in good health. There is some work being undertaken on the conditions that are 
likely to lead to people stating they are not in good health (e.g. diabetes, heart disease and 
chronic respiratory conditions) and this is being fed into the work of the Population Health, 
Prevention and Health Inequalities Steering Group. 

28.10 Members of the Board commented that statutory guidance states that Healthwatch and 
members of the community should be involved in the development of the JSNA and asked for 
more detail on how that might happen. 

28.11 Darrell Gale commented that part of the involvement of Healthwatch in the development 
of the JSNA is through Healthwatch’s membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board. The 
other areas are through the inclusion of Healthwatch’s work in the Needs Assessment and 
through consultation exercises that are carried out on the development of parts of the JSNA. 
There is also an ongoing process to look at how better Public Health can engage with the 
community and groups of residents, and particularly those who are not often heard from. The 
team is happy to work with Healthwatch on how better to engage with the community and 
include the work Healthwatch already undertakes through its engagement events. 

28.12 Jessica Britton, Executive Director NHS Sussex commented that there is a really helpful 
integrated process for developing the JSNA. In terms of the point made about wider 
engagement it may be helpful for the East Sussex Health and Social Care System Partnership 
Board and the Population Health, Prevention and Health Inequalities Steering Group to consider 
this as part of the governance process for the development of the JSNA. 

28.13 Darrell Gale confirmed that Public Health would be happy to include better engagement 
in the work of the East Sussex Health and Social Care System Partnership Board and the 
Population Health, Prevention and Health Inequalities Steering Group. 

28.14 The Board RESOLVED to approve the JSNA refresh plans for 2023 and beyond. 

 

29. DRAFT SUSSEX INTEGRATED CARE STRATEGY  

29.1 The Board considered a report of the draft Sussex Integrated Care Strategy (ICS). 

29.2 The Board asked if the Strategy will look at the cost of living crisis, loneliness and 
isolation and whether it is going to cover reducing smoking, alcohol misuse and addiction. 

29.3 Mark Stainton, Director of Adult Social Care and Health outlined that East Sussex 
County Council had been working on benefit maximisation and other types of support to help 
residents with the cost of living crisis. The Public Health team will continue to work on smoking 
cessation and addiction. The Integrated Care Strategy provides a high-level vision and case for 
change and focuses on three key priorities that will make a difference to people’s health and 
wellbeing. The details will be in the delivery plan and accompanying equalities impact 
assessment. 

29.4 The Board commented that how the Strategy is implemented and having enough 
resources to deliver it will be key. The Board also commented that the workforce and use of 
technology such as artificial intelligence and digital technologies will be important in delivering 
the Strategy. It asked when the delivery plan would be available and whether success measures 
will be included in the delivery plan. 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

29.5 The Chair commented that the implementation plan will be developed by the end of 
March 2023 and the resources will be addressed as part of the plan. Mark Stainton confirmed 
that a draft delivery plan will be ready to share with the Board in March 2023 and key measures 
of success will be developed for inclusion in the plan. 

29.6 Vicky Smith, Programme Director, East Sussex Health and Social Care Transformation 
added that the Integrated Care Strategy is high level and delivery planning will need to be 
undertaken in the place-based partnerships. There is existing work in East Sussex taking place 
to tackle the issues flagged in the Strategy such as loneliness and isolation. The Strategy will 
help recast some of our local partnership priorities with the added benefit of system-wide 
support at a Sussex level. The population health and wellbeing measures are fundamentally 
important and national guidance on a shared outcomes framework is awaited, which should 
cover social care, the NHS and public health. This will also shape how the system carries out 
the measurement of population health and wellbeing in concert with the work Public Health is 
undertaking through the Population Health, Prevention and Health Inequalities Steering Group. 

29.7 Alison Jeffery, Director of Children’s Services, thanked East Sussex colleagues and 
partners for advocating for Children and Young People to be a priority in the pan Sussex 
Integrated Care Strategy. It will be important to ensure this commitment is reflected in the 
delivery plan for the Strategy. 

29.8 The Board commented that there is some confusion about what is meant by working at a 
local level. Is this place, District or Borough, neighbourhood, locality network, or community of 
interest level and does this differ if it refers to Brighton, West Sussex or East Sussex? When it 
comes to integration, locality, and joint working it would be good to have some clarity about 
what is meant by working at a local level. 

29.9 Mark Stainton acknowledged this point. One of the first actions in developing the delivery 
plan will be to clarify some definitions. The one of ‘place’ is clear, there are three places across 
Sussex which coincide with the boundaries of the three upper tier authorities and HWBs. Below 
that level it is less clear, and more discussion needs to take place. In terms of integration, there 
needs to be clarity about what is meant by integration, joint working and partnership working. It 
does not have to mean changes in organisational structures but that different professionals work 
together from Districts, Boroughs, NHS and voluntary sector organisations around a discrete 
group of individuals in the community. When this work was done before there were twelve 
localities across East Sussex that aligned with the District and Borough council boundaries. This 
needs to be looked at again, including whether Primary Care Networks could be a good local 
level to work at. Alison Jeffery commented that sometimes it is necessary to work at on different 
footprints for different purposes. For example, in Children’s Services that might be around 
different groups of schools. 

29.10 The Board RESOLVED to endorse the draft Sussex Integrated Care Strategy, 
specifically the elements that relate to East Sussex and its alignment with priorities set out in the 
East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Strategy ‘Healthy Lives, Healthy People 2022– 2027’. 

 

 

30. WORK PROGRAMME  

 

30.1 The Board discussed the work programme which contains the reports planned for future 
meetings.  

30.2 It was agreed that a report on the Healthwatch Eastbourne listening tour would be added 
to the work programme for the March 2023 meeting. 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

30.3 It was clarified that oversight of the JSNA starts with the Board which has the 
responsibility of the producing the JSNA report. Mark Stainton added that it is a statutory 
function which is fulfilled by having an annual presentation of a report. A report on the JSNA will 
be added to the work programme for 2023. 

30.4 It was reported that the Director of Public Health annual report will be scheduled for the 
July 2023 meeting and not the March meeting, which is a change to the work programme 
contained in the report. 

30.5 The Board RESOLVED to agree the work programme with these amendments. 

 

31. ANY OTHER ITEMS PREVIOUSLY NOTIFIED UNDER AGENDA ITEM 4  

 

31.1 There were none. 

 

 

The meeting ended at 3.35 pm. 

 

 

Councillor Keith Glazier (Chair) 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report to:  East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:    7 March 2023 

By: Executive Managing Director, East Sussex, NHS Sussex and 

Director of Adult Social Care, East Sussex County Council 

 

Title: Integration programme and Shared Delivery Plan development 

update 

Purpose of Report:   To provide an update on the key recent local developments in 

our health and care integration programme arising, from our 

planning to support the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy joint 

delivery plan 

Recommendations: East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) is recommended 

to: 

1. Note the progress with planning to support our implementation of the shared 

ambition and priorities set out in the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy and joint 

East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy; 

2. Endorse the direction of travel and the recommended planning milestones for 

2023/24, which will also form the basis of the East Sussex Place contribution to 

the Sussex Shared Delivery Plan (SDP), and; 

3. Agree to explore holding a meeting of the HWB in June 2023 in order to come to a 

view on whether the SDP takes account of HWB Strategy priorities, and enable the 

requirements of the HWB and timescales set by NHS England as outlined in 

paragraphs 2.4 – 2.7 to be met. 
 

1 Background  

1.1  Since the December 2022 meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board our context 
over the winter period has been one of extreme pressure across the country for NHS and 
care services. Locally our staff have been working hard to quickly use the extra national 
£500m Social Care Discharge Fund to best effect, helping patients be discharged from 
hospital and into onward care as fast as possible.  The national funding has been used in 
the following ways:  
 

 Increased Discharge to Assess (D2A) bed capacity across general beds 

 Increased provision of specialist beds  

 Supporting packages of care 

 Increased D2A homecare capacity  

 Provision of equipment to support discharge in Emergency Departments 

 Recruitment and retention incentives for the independent care sector 

 Enhancing a range of measures to support safe and effective discharge  
 

1.2 Although issues continue to need to be managed on a day-to-day basis, this has had 
a positive effect on reducing the numbers of people waiting for the right support to be in 
place for discharge, and reducing the length of time people are in hospital.  
 

1.3 As a Sussex Integrated Care System (ICS) we have now also started to develop the 

joint delivery plan for the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy, which was agreed by the Sussex 

Health and Care Assembly in December 2022 following endorsement by the HWB at its 

meeting on 13 December. The Sussex Strategy builds on our East Sussex Health and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.sussex.ics.nhs.uk/our-priorities/our-strategy/
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/policies/health-wellbeing-strategy


 

 

Wellbeing Strategy (2022 – 2027), and sets out our ambition for a healthier future for 

everyone in Sussex over the next five years.  It includes the following priorities:  

 Building integrated community teams and local partnerships  

 Growing and supporting our Sussex health and care workforce  

 Improving the use of digital technology and information 

 

1.4 To support this a 5-year joint forward plan (known in Sussex as the Shared Delivery 

Plan or SDP) is being brought together in the January – June time frame.  This report 

considers the progress with developing the plan for our shared strategic objectives for health 

and care integration, as set out in our East Sussex HWB Strategy and the new Sussex 

Integrated Care Strategy, and brings our initial Place plans for 2023/24 which will also 

contribute to the Sussex SDP for review. 

2 Supporting information 

Sussex Integrated Care Strategy and Joint Forward Plan 

2.1 The Sussex Integrated Care Strategy is built on the three population Joint Strategic 

Needs Assessments (JSNAs) and HWB Strategies in Sussex.  It is also underpinned by the 

principle of subsidiarity and the primacy of the three Places - East Sussex, West Sussex and 

Brighton and Hove - in leading and supporting delivery within our Sussex ICS.  

 

2.2 The Sussex Strategy and the East Sussex HWB Strategy specifically align around a 

shared priority to support greater levels of joined up working in our communities, and a 

shared framework of community focussed planning and delivery that links activity in Primary 

Care Network (PCN) services and development with all partners working to improve 

outcomes in our neighbourhoods and communities.  This includes the NHS (primary, acute, 

community and mental health), Adult Social Care, Public Health, Children’s Services, the 

local voluntary and community sector and wider local government services in the County, 

Borough and District Councils.   

 

2.3 The next phase will be to develop a joint delivery plan.  The national Guidance for 

developing a five year ‘Joint Forward Plan’ (JFP) was published in December and can be 

found here.  This sets out the key requirements and areas of flexibility for Integrated Care 

Boards (ICBs) and their partner Trusts to bring together a first JFP before the start of the 

2023/24 financial year. A brief summary of the key points from the national Guidance is 

included in Appendix 1. 

2.4 To support this, a 5-year joint plan, known in Sussex as the Shared Delivery Plan 

(SDP), is being brought together in two phases.  An initial draft Plan will be submitted by the 

Sussex NHS Integrated Care Board (ICB) to NHS England (NHSE) by 31 March which will 

focus on year 1 (2023/24). A full finalised Plan will then be submitted to NHSE by 30 June 

covering high level milestones for years 2-5 (2024/25 – 2027/28).  An overview bringing 

together the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy and proposed Shared Delivery Plan 

development framework produced by NHS Sussex is contained in Appendix 2. This 

includes alignment with wider NHS operational priorities for urgent and emergency care, 

planned care, primary care and hospital discharge. 

 

2.5 In line with this our East Sussex Health and Care Partnership shared priorities for 

delivery in 2023/24 have been refreshed and further developed, along with our supporting 

partnership and programme governance, to support effective leadership and delivery at 

Place (East Sussex) as we move into 2023/24. Page 10

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/policies/health-wellbeing-strategy
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/joint-forward-plan/


 

 

 

 
 

Role of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in the SDP 

2.6 The national Joint Forward Plan Guidance outlines a key statutory role in the SDP 

development process for HWBs to be consulted for their opinion on whether the draft SDP 

takes proper account of HWB Strategies.  Details about the opinion of HWBs and how the 

SDP has responded should be included in the final draft plan that will be submitted in June. 

 2.7 In light of this specific role and the timescales outlined in paragraph 2.4, it is 

suggested that a meeting of the HWB is convened in June to enable due consideration to be 

given to the final draft Sussex SDP and its content, as it relates to delivering the priorities we 

have agreed for the population of East Sussex, prior to its submission to the NHSE at the 

end of June. 
  

Integrated health, care and wellbeing in communities 

2.8 In summary, the overall ambition of the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy is to support 

people to live healthier longer lives, particularly those who are most disadvantaged, and to 

develop a new way of working with our different communities that better understands local 

people’s needs and responds to them in the best possible way. It will have a greater focus 

on keeping people healthy, supporting all aspects of people’s lives and the specific needs of 

children and young people.  This ‘joined-up community approach’ will involve three aspects:  

• Involvement of local people: Local people, and carers, will be more involved in, 

and get more support for, their own health, wellbeing and their care, and how local 

services work for them;  

• Joined-up working: Teams of professionals and experts will work closer together 

across different organisations within local communities to tailor support, care and 

treatment to what local people need; 

• Partnership with communities: Health and care will work with communities to 

shape support and care around what works best for them, building on what already 

works well and creating new solutions where that is needed.  

2.9 This ambition will be achieved through a critical focus on the following: 

• Doing more to grow and support our workforce; 

• Improving the use of digital technology and information;  

• Maximising the benefit of partnerships.  As well as the new Sussex Assembly and 

within the NHS, this will mean supporting more leadership at “place” i.e. 

strengthening how our organisations can work together formally at place across our 

populations in Brighton and Hove, East Sussex and West Sussex through the Place-

based Health and Care Partnerships, whose role is to come together to shape and 

transform health and care and make most of our collective resources, building on the 

work currently underway.  

Place leadership and delivery 

2.10 A brief summary of the journey to date and planned next steps in East Sussex was 

included in the final Strategy, and is attached to this report at Appendix 3 for ease of 

reference.  Early system leadership discussions have made a start with exploring what our 

high level delivery plans could look like to deliver increased integrated working at a 

community/neighbourhood level. This has covered the following elements:  

 

Page 11



 

 

 Further strengthening our focus on improving health outcomes and inequalities, and 

how we measure improvements both to health overall and the resulting need for 

services in four priority areas that our initial analysis suggests are among the leading 

causes of early death, ill health, and less years of life lived in good health overall in 

our population; Cardiovascular disease (CVD); respiratory disease; mental health (all 

ages) and; frailty/ageing well.   

The evidence suggests that these conditions are also amenable to change through 

the contribution of the full range of services across the NHS and social care, 

voluntary and community sector enterprises (VCSE) and wider county, district and 

borough council services, from primary prevention and early intervention, through to 

clinical and complex care needs.  A summary of the preliminary analysis supporting 

this shared strategic focus on specific health outcomes is attached in Appendix 4. 

 Developing our model for the way our teams can work together in communities and 

neighbourhoods, and removing the barriers between our organisations to enable 

them to do this.  Initially this will be through building on our original community 

services target operating model, and the existing related project and pilot activity in 

Hastings to test and develop our approach to ensure primary care, mental health and 

services that impact on the wider determinants of health are a part of the model.  

This will be followed by further phases of activity to roll the model out across the 

county. 

2.11 The draft high level milestone plan to support co-designing and delivering these 

shared programmes in 2023/24 is set out in Appendix 5, and this will form the basis of our 

East Sussex Place partnership contribution to year 1 of the Sussex Strategy SDP.  A next 

step will be to develop our expected milestones for delivery in years 2 – 5, and the further 

evolution of our place based partnership to support this, for review by the Health and 

Wellbeing Board. 

2.12 We have also considered how we can further evolve the role and function of our East 

Sussex Health and Care Partnership to better support leadership and delivery of our 

objectives in 2023/24.  This has focussed on how we can use our experience and embedded 

infrastructure to model: 

 The different tiers of planning and delivery at ICS, Place and 

community/neighbourhood;  

 Streamlining and strengthening the strategic links between our Place integration 

programmes and Oversight Boards, and updating our system partnership and 

programme governance to reflect this, including how this links to Sussex-wide 

programme delivery, and;  

 Agreeing where our SDP Place delivery priorities should report in our partnership and 

programme governance. 

2.13 With accountability through to the HWB, this is intended to enable a clear focus to be 

retained at Place on our key priority integration programmes across health improvement and 

reducing health inequalities, and integrated care in children and young people, mental 

health, and community services.  This will support delivery of ICS-led improvements for NHS 

urgent and emergency care, planned care, primary care and hospital discharge, in line with 

NHS Long Term Plan and operational priorities.  The finalised governance will be brought to 

a future meeting of the HWB. 

Page 12



 

 

3 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

3.1 This report provides a brief update on progress with the key developments that will 

shape the form and focus of our East Sussex health and care integration programme over 

the next five years, including our local next steps for our Place development to support 

leadership and delivery of shared priorities.  This is aimed at collectively delivering a 

strengthened integrated offer in our communities and neighbourhoods, working across the 

different needs in our population.  It signals a new phase of local partnership development to 

support how we are organised to do this across key integration programmes, governance 

and resources.   

3.2 Within all of these arrangements sovereign organisations are still accountable for 

their statutory responsibilities, services and budgets.  Our overall commitment to working in 

partnership across the NHS and local government at Place level remains central to our 

priorities, to achieve the best use of our collective resources for our population - in line with 

our HWB Strategy, Sussex Integrated Care Strategy, NHS Long Term Plan and County 

Council Plan objectives. 

3.3 The ambition for an integrated health and care offer in partnership with our local 

communities has long been a part of this, as it is the best way to deliver improved health, 

social care and wellbeing outcomes for our population.  There is now support and alignment 

across the Sussex ICS for this with a focus on delivery, and this provides an opportunity to 

renew how we share leadership on this agenda through our Place level partnership.  In light 

of this members of the HWB are recommended to: 

 Note the progress with planning to support our implementation of the shared 

ambition and priorities set out in the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy and joint East 

Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy; 

 Endorse the direction of travel and recommended planning milestones for 2023/24, 

which will also form the basis of the East Sussex Place contribution to the Sussex 

Shared Delivery Plan (SDP), and; 

 Agree to explore holding a meeting of the HWB in June 2023 in order to come to a 

view on whether the SDP takes account of HWB Strategy priorities, and enable the 

requirements of the HWB and timescales set by NHS England as outlined in 

paragraphs 2.4 – 2.7 to be met. 

 
JESSICA BRITTON 

Executive Managing Director, East Sussex, NHS Sussex  

MARK STAINTON 

Director of Adult Social Care, East Sussex County Council 

 

Contact Officer 

Vicky Smith, Programme Director East Sussex Health and Care Transformation  

Email: vicky.smith@eastsussex.gov.uk Tel: 07827 841063 

 

Appendix 1: National Joint Forward Plan Guidance key points summary 

Appendix 2: Developing our ambition for a healthier future in Sussex 

Appendix 3: Summary: East Sussex integrated care in communities 

Appendix 4: Summary of analysis of health improvement opportunities 

Appendix 5: Draft East Sussex Place high level milestone plan for 2023/24 

Page 13

mailto:vicky.smith@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 
National Joint Forward Plan Guidance Key Points Summary 
 
The national Guidance for developing a five year Joint Forward Plan (JFP) was published in 
December can be found here.  This sets out the key requirements and areas of flexibility for 
ICBs and their partner Trusts to bring together a first JFP before the start of the 2023/24 
financial year. Brief key points are as follows:  
 

 Legal responsibility for the JFP lies with the ICB and its partner Trusts.  Systems 

are encouraged to use the JFP to develop a shared delivery plan for the 

Integrated Care Strategy and the local joint Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy 

“that is supported by the whole system, including local authorities and voluntary, 

community and social enterprise partners”;  

 

 As a minimum, the JFP should describe how the ICB and its partner trusts intend 

to arrange and/or provide NHS services to meet their population’s physical and 

mental health needs.  This should include the delivery of universal NHS 

commitments (as described in the annual NHS priorities and operational planning 

guidance - also issued on 23 December) and NHS Long Term Plan, address the 

four core purposes of ICSs and meet legal requirements; 

 

 ICBs and their partner trusts will continue to separately submit specific 

operational and financial information as part of the nationally coordinated NHS 

planning process, with alignment between NHS planning submissions and the 

public-facing JFP; 

 

 At a Sussex level the ICS System Leadership Forum will take forward 

discussions about what the delivery plan process and content will look like.  A 

session is planned for 27 February to explore that, having been rescheduled from 

the 19 January due to the industrial action by the Nursing workforce. In Sussex it 

has been agreed to call the JFP the ‘Sussex Shared Delivery Plan’ (SDP). 

 

 The key nationally prescribed dates are: a first draft JFP to be produced by 31 

March 2023 covering year 1 (2023/24), and a final plan for publication and 

sharing by 30 June 2023, covering the remaining years 2 – 5. 

 

 A key stage in the JFP development process is the statutory role of HWBs; 

Boards are to be consulted for their opinion on whether the JFP takes proper 

account of their HWB Strategy, and a statement about this from HWBs is to be 

included in the final draft plan that is submitted at the end of June. 

 
 

Page 15

Appendix 1

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/joint-forward-plan/


This page is intentionally left blank



Improving Lives 
Together

Developing our ambition for a healthier future 
in Sussex

Sussex Integrated Care Strategy and 
Shared Delivery Plan

P
age 17

A
ppendix 2



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

How the
Integrated Health & Care Strategy
was developed in partnership with 
stakeholders including citizens and 
our workforce

P
age 18



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Sussex Strategy Development Principles

The Sussex Health and Care Assembly agreed the following key principles to guide the strategy 
development process:

a) Place and population first: We took an approach that considers the principles of place-

based working that have been agreed across the system.

b) Data and evidence: We ensured that our approach was based on evidence, comparative 

data and responded to population need in line with the above principles.

c) Co-production: Our communities were central to the creation of the plan. To achieve this, 

we ensured that every organisation was actively involved and led in the engagement with our 

communities.

d) NHS plan: The NHS National Mandate was included within the strategy but did not drive its 

framing. Health and Wellbeing Strategies underpinned the strategy development process.

Ensuring the most appropriate geography was considered in framing strategic priorities: 

• Neighbourhood (i.e. town or local community)

• Place (i.e. local authority footprints of Brighton & Hove, East Sussex or West Sussex)

• Sussex Wide (i.e. overall footprint of NHS Sussex)

The Sussex Health and Care Assembly was responsible for signing off the strategy, with full 

support and engagement from system partners. This was achieved at the Health and Care 

Assembly’s Meeting in public 14 December 2022. The Strategy was formally published alongside 

a week of media campaigns on 30 January 2023.

P
age 19



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Simplified governance structure for development and sign off of the Integrated 
Care Strategy

Programme Board

Provider Governance

Local Authority Governance

Council, 
Cabinet and 
Committees

Sussex Health and Care 
Assembly

NHS Sussex Governance

NHS Sussex Board

Health 
Oversight 
Scrutiny 

Committees

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Boards

Place Governance

Integrated Care 
Strategy

NHS Delivery 
Plan

System Leadership 
Forum

NHS Sussex 
Executive Committee

P
age 20



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Our engagement approach – endorsed by the Programme Board made up of 
Directors of Adult and Children's’ Services and Directors of Public Health

• Built on existing insight  - not re-engage

• Sense checked themes and priorities 

• Underpinned by collaboration and 
partnership across the health and care 
system 

• Independent and peer review ensured 
process was systematic & meaningful

• Clarity on “what’s next” for ongoing 
engagement and review after Strategy 
publication 

• Strategy underpinned by a 
comprehensive Equality and Health 
Inequalities Impact Assessment (EHIA) 
and Quality Impact Assessment (QIA)

Insight report - Priorities for our people & 
communities  

Inequality 
lens 

Current 
priorities 

Existing 
insight 

Sense check: key 
public stakeholders @ 
system/place  

Reference 
group 
oversight 

Final strategy 

Ongoing insight capture and review  

Ju
ly –

m
id

 A
u

gu
st 

Sep
-N

o
v

Spring 2023 

P
age 21



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

P
age 22



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

We are developing an ambition for health and care 
that aims to improve the lives of people living across 
Sussex now and in the future.

It sets out what we want to achieve over the next five 
years.

Its purpose is to set out the areas of work that we 
want to achieve across the health and care system 
that will make the biggest difference to local people.

By working together across all partners, and with 
local people and communities, we will be able to 
combine our collective energy, resource and 
expertise to bring bigger benefits for our population.

It will be built on the Health and Wellbeing Strategies 
that are already in place across Brighton and Hove, 
East Sussex and West Sussex, is influenced by 
supporting information and evidence, has been 
shaped by feedback and insight from partners and 
the public engagement, and responds to a number of 
national strategies, plans and guidelines that need to 
be met.

What we are trying to do

The Sussex Health and Care Assembly oversaw
its development and will oversee its impact. The 
Assembly is a new statutory joint committee between 
the NHS Sussex, Brighton & Hove City Council, East 
Sussex County Council and West Sussex County 
Council, and includes membership from a wide 
range of leaders from the NHS, local authorities, 
universities, voluntary and community organisations, 
Healthwatch and other specialist members with 
expertise in further education, housing and local 
enterprise.

We are now discussing across organisations, staff, 
and our communities, what we need to do to make 
our ambition a reality and put that into a Shared 
Delivery Plan.

P
age 23



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

A lot of work has already taken place across health 
and care over recent years to improve the support, 
care and treatment available, and the timeliness of 
how people access services, and progress has been 
made that has brought real benefits to local people. 

However, we recognise this has still not gone far or 
fast enough in many areas and a lot of the issues we 
face can only be resolved with bigger, longer-term 
and more ambitious change. 

There are many issues and challenges that are 
currently impacting on the health and care of our 
population, and the services that are available to 
support them, that means some people are not 
always getting the experience we all want. 

These include: 

Greater need for services

We are seeing an increasing need for care and 
support, which is putting pressure on services and 
staff, meaning some people are waiting longer than 
they should for the care, support and treatment. This 
is due to a number of factors:

Why we need to change

o Someone’s life circumstances that are 
leading to poor health;

o Society and economic environment and 
conditions our local communities are 
living within; 

o Our growing and ageing population that 
means more people need more care 
more often; 

o Impact of the pandemic and the current 
cost of living on people’s health and 
wellbeing. 

Health inequalities

We currently have communities and groups of 
people who have worse health, outcomes and 
access to services than other people because of 
who they are or where they live, particularly for those 
living in our most deprived areas. 

P
age 24



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Disjointed care

Local people have told us that services and 
organisations do not always work in a joined-up way 
which can cause delays in care and treatment, resulting 
in poor experiences and outcomes. They have also said 
that the large number of health and care organisations 
providing care are variable in quality and can be 
confusing, making it difficult to know where to go for help 
when they need it.

Use of digital technology and resources

We need to do more to harness the potential of digital 
technology to improve access and join-up of services. 
We also need to get more out of the resources we have 
available in terms of the buildings we use and the public 
funding we have to spend. 

Development and support for our 
workforce

There are three key issues that we need to address to 
better develop and support our workforce:

We now have an opportunity to respond and 
tackle to the issues we face across the 
Sussex health and care system.

o The increasing pressure on staff is resulting in more 
people going off sick and more people leaving health 
and care professions. 

o We are currently unable to recruit enough care 
professionals to cover vacancies in our services and 
it takes time to train and develop future staff. 

o We are not doing enough to support staff to develop 
new skills which can be used in the best possible 
way across different teams and services.

P
age 25



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Our ambition is improve the lives of people living 
across Sussex by supporting them to live healthier for 
longer and making sure they have access to the best 
possible services when they need them. We want to:

Help local people start their lives 
well by:

o Improving mother and baby health and wellbeing 
and supporting parents and carers. 

o Creating healthy environments for children to grow 
up in.

o Supporting good mental health for all children.
o Better supporting the most vulnerable children and 

young people.

Help local people to live their lives 
well by:

o Supporting people to look after their own health 
and wellbeing.

o Supporting people to live, work and play in places 
that promote health and wellbeing.

o Supporting people who have physical disabilities, 
learning disabilities and mental health conditions, 
to have good health and joined up care.

o Ensuring more access to services for people who 
have traditionally been under-served, for example 
homeless people and other groups.

Our ambition for the future
Help local people to age well by:

o Ensuring fewer older people feel lonely or isolated.
o Helping older people to stay healthy and live 

independently for longer.
o Reducing the number of older people who suffer falls.
o Helping older people receive good quality care at the end 

of their lives and to die at a place of their choosing. 

Help local people get the treatment, care  
and support they need when they do 
become ill by: 

o Tailoring care to support people in their own home, or as 
close to home as possible. 

o Supporting the health and wellbeing of informal carers.
o Giving them access to the most appropriate and best 

experts and professionals as early as possible that best 
suits their needs. 

o Giving greater joined-up care and support for people with 
long-term conditions and a number of health issues.

Help our staff get more support, 
development and work in an by:

o Growing our workforce by making it easier for people to  
go into care professions.

o Providing more and varied training opportunities.
o Creating a more inclusive and diverse working  

environment.

P
age 26



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

We need to respond to the issues we face, and what 
local people and staff have said, and make the 
biggest difference to improve the lives of people 
living across Sussex. 

We will do this with a new Joined-Up Community 
approach.

This will involve a different way of working to how 
services are working today. There will be three big 
differences: 

• Involvement of local people: Local people, 
and carers, will be supported to have greater 
involvement and say in how health and care 
services work for them.

• Joined-up working: Teams of professionals 
and experts will work closer together across 
different organisations within local communities to 
tailor support, care and treatment to what local 
people need.

Achieving our ambition

P
age 27



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

• Partnership with communities: Health and care 
will work with communities to shape support and care 
around what works best for them, building on what 
already works well and creating new solutions where 
needed. 

We know that every community is different, and local 
people will have different needs, so there will not be a 
one-size fits all approach. 

As well as changes to how services work, this new way of 
working will also have three big differences in how we 
approach health and care for local people:

• Bigger focus on all aspects of your life: We 
will be focusing on all areas of people’s lives that 
influence their health and wellbeing. 

• Bigger focus on supporting you to stay 
healthy: We will focus more of our effort, resource 
and expertise into helping people you healthy and 
supporting you to continue to live a fulfilled life if you do 
become ill or have a health issue. 

• Bigger focus on our children and young 
people: We will be focusing on children and young 
people as we know giving them greater support will help 
them for the rest of their lives. 

Our success factors

For the new way of working to be successful, there are 
three critical success factors that we need to develop and 
improve:

• Growing and supporting our workforce

• Improving the use of digital technology and 
information

• Maximising the benefit of partnership working

P
age 28



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Success factor: Growing and supporting our 
workforce

To achieve our ambition, we need to grow and develop 
our workforce and make sure they are more supported 
to do the best job they can for local people. 

There are five key areas we want to achieve:

• Joined-up working across the workforce. 

• We want staff to be able to work more flexibly, to
develop more general skills and expand the skills 
they have. 

• We want to develop more roles that cover a number 
of different disciplines and bring greater expertise.

• We want to encourage and make it easier for more 
young people to want and have a career in health 
and care. 

• We want to create a culture where people feel 

valued and supported to develop their skills and 

expertise at work.

P
age 29



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Success factor: Improving the use of digital 
technology and information

A lot of work has taken place to improve our use of digital 
technology and information to improve services and help people 
can access support, care and treatment more easily. However, 
we are not maximising the potential that it can bring and we 
need to now focus on how we can better do this to make our 
ambition a success. There are five key areas we want to 
achieve:

• We want to connect information across our health and care 
services, so the service and support you receive is as 
properly joined-up.

• We want to improve the way services use technology and 
how they share data to improve the support, care and 
treatment they provide. 

• We want staff to have access to the information they 
need, wherever they are and whenever they need it, to better 
support the health and care needs of local people.

• We want to support local people to access and manage 
their own health and care information, care preferences and 
the way in which they wish to interact with services.

• We want to do more to help people use and know how to 
use digital technology in the way that will best suit them 
and their needs. 

P
age 30



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Success factor: Maximising the benefit of 
partnership working

To achieve our ambition, organisations responsible for the 
planning, co-ordination, and delivery of health and care 
need to work closer together and with other organisations 
that play a part in influencing a person’s health and care. 

In addition to working at a local level with communities, we 
will do this in three ways:

• More leadership at “place”: We aim to strengthen how 
our organisations can work together formally across our 
populations in Brighton and Hove, East Sussex and 
West Sussex, focussing on distinct needs and 
challenges in our local areas. We call this working at 
“place” and it is where the local NHS, local government 
and a wide range of local partners come together to 
shape and transform health and care and the make the 
most of the collective resources we have available. Our 
three Health and Care Partnerships will increase ways 
to offer joined-up care and action to improve health and 
reduce health inequalities in our local communities.

• Working across Sussex: Our new “Health and Care 
Assembly” will strengthen how key organisations can 
work together formally on the complex and challenging 
issues that are shared across Sussex.

This is a new way of working and will mean more   
organisations will be able to contribute to improving   
health and care, through creating innovative solutions to 
help make sure our ambition becomes a reality.

• Greater joined-up of the local NHS: The local NHS will 
be doing more to join-up services across the 1,100 
different NHS organisations across Sussex, to improve 
the experience and outcomes of local people and staff.

P
age 31



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Implementing the Sussex 
Integrated Care Strategy –
A Shared Delivery Plan

Full NHS England Guidance: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/B1940-guidance-
on-developing-the-joint-forward-plan-december-2022.pdf

P
age 32

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/B1940-guidance-on-developing-the-joint-forward-plan-december-2022.pdf


Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Purpose of the Shared Delivery Plan – (National Guidance)

• The Department for Health & Social Care have published guidance for Integrated Care Boards 
to develop a five-year Shared Delivery Plan providing the integrated care system with a flexible 
framework which builds on existing system and place strategies and plans, which includes 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Board Strategies.

• The Shared Delivery Plan will describe how NHS Sussex and its partner trusts intend to arrange 
and/or provide NHS services to meet their population’s physical and mental health needs the 
delivery of universal NHS commitments, addressing the Health and Care System’s four 
core purposes and meeting legal requirements.

Principles

Three principles describing the Shared Delivery Plan’s nature and function have been co-developed with 
ICBs across the country, trusts and national organisations representing local authorities and other 
system partners. They include;

Principle 1: Fully aligned with the wider system partnership’s ambitions.
Principle 2: Supporting subsidiarity by building on existing local strategies and plans as well as 
reflecting the universal NHS commitments.

Principle 3: Delivery focused, including specific objectives, trajectories and milestones as appropriate.

P
age 33



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Planning Guidance

There are areas of the planning guidance where work is already underway which we believe will enable 
us to deliver the objectives, and others where we are already achieving the target and believe we will 
continue to do so. However, there are areas that require significant focus for us to achieve and these 
will be an operational priority for us. These are:
 Urgent and Emergency Care
 Planned Care
 Primary Care
 Discharge
As well as our planning to deliver our operational priorities, we are also working to develop our Shared 
Delivery Plan for the delivery of our Integrated Health and Care Strategy. The key areas of focus in the 
strategy are:
 Place and Integrated Community Teams
 Digital and Data
 Workforce
In addition, to enable delivery across all our plans, there is a need for us to develop strong Clinical 
Leadership across the system, as well as to continue our focus on addressing health inequalities 
and managing our finances in a sustainable way.

These ten areas (highlighted above) will be our key priorities as we go into next year and we will now 
be discussing across our system partners, Executive and our teams how best we can deliver this as 
part of the Shared Delivery Plan.

P
age 34



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Developing the plan

• NHS Sussex is required to provide a first draft of the Shared Delivery Plan by 1st April 2023. However, for this first year, NHS 
England have stated the final date for publishing and sharing the plan is 30th June 2023, allowing the process of engagement with the 
Sussex Health and Care Assembly, Health and Wellbeing Boards and NHS England to continue after 31st March but ensuring a final 
iteration is signed off by 30th June.

• The Shared Delivery Plan will be delivered as a single plan that incorporates the Operating Plan requirements for 2023/24 and the 
delivery plan for the five-year Sussex Health and Care Improving Lives Together Strategy set within a framework document that will 
bring together a consistent narrative around strategic change and operational delivery, pulling in content from the approved Strategy 
and respective Place plans.

• The March 2023 submission will consist of, high-level information on the Operational Plan and the detail of Year One response to the 
Integrated Care Strategy, plus a vision and roadmap for years two to five of the Strategy (noting that an initial draft of the Operating 
Plan must be submitted to NHSE on 23 February 2023).

• The June 2023 submission will set out the delivery objectives for years two to five of the Strategy in more detail.
• Chief Executive Officer, Senior Responsible Officers and respective Integrated Care Board Chief Officer leads have been aligned for 

each of the priority areas of the Shared Delivery Plan and an engagement, planning and approval approach with Local Authority leads 
is also being confirmed.

P
age 35



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Shared Delivery Plan Framework

The below framework will form the basis of the shared delivery plan. It incorporates all of the mandated 
content set out in the national guidance and attempts to mirror the approach of the Integrated Care 
Strategy

Summary of framework

1. Delivering Improving Lives Together
• Introductory statement from partners and Exec summary 

– consistent with strategy

2. Our population and how we work
• Overview of Sussex population and how system works 
– aligned with strategy supporting documents.

3. Our ambition for a healthier future
• Sets out ambition – consistent with strategy
• Life course, service improvement and workforce
• Sets out other strategic imperatives and aims:
• Improving health and health outcomes of our most 

disadvantaged communities and individuals (Health 
inequalities)

• Working better and smarter, and getting the most value 
out of funding we have (finance)

• Doing more to support our communities to develop socially 
and economically (social and economic development)

• Protecting those who are victims of abuse (Safeguarding)

4. Making our ambition a reality: Our year one high impact 
actions

• Year one change for long-term improvement (Descriptor, key 
actions for each and by when)

• Developing Integrated Community Teams
• Improving the use of digital technology and information
• Growing and developing our workforce
• Maximising the power of partnerships a place and delivery of our 

health and wellbeing strategies
• Year one actions for immediate improvements (Descriptor, key 

actions for each and by when)
• Increasing access to and reduce variability in primary care.
• Improving response times to 999 calls and reduce A&E waiting 

times.
• Reducing diagnostic and planned care waiting lists.
• Accelerating patient flow through, and discharge from, hospitals.

5. Developing our Shared Delivery Plan
• Approach and principles
• Evidence, research and change methodology
• Governance and leadership
• Engagement and partnerships
• Performance, scrutiny and assurance
• How we own, share and manage risk across the system

P
age 36



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Developing the plan – engagement

Our proposed approach:
National guidance stipulates the local approach to be determined by NHS Sussex and partner trusts but should build on 
and reflect existing joint strategic needs assessments, joint health and wellbeing strategies and NHS delivery plans as 
well as local patient and public engagement exercises already undertaken.

Given the extensive and successful engagement approach to co-developing the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy, 
feedback and insight already gained from citizens and our workforce will be used to inform development of the Shared 
Delivery Plan. In addition, a robust governance structure overseeing the development of the plan, will ensure that this 
insight is directly applied to the areas identified by the national guidance.

In line with the national guidance, key stakeholders and groups, such as Healthwatch, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
the Sussex Health and Care Assembly will be actively engaged. The respective Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees will be invited to scrutinise the final plans, in the usual way.

Close engagement with partners will be essential to the development of Shared Delivery Plan. This includes working 
with:
►the Sussex Health and Care Assembly (ensuring this also provides the perspective of social care providers)
►primary care providers
►local authorities and each relevant Health and Wellbeing Board
►other ICBs in respect of providers whose operating boundary spans multiple ICSs
►NHS collaboratives, networks and alliances
►the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector
►people and communities that will be affected by specific parts of the proposed plan, or who are likely to have a 

significant interest in any of its objectives, in accordance with the requirement to consult.

P
age 37



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Role of the Health & Wellbeing Board
• In preparing or revising the Shared Delivery Plan, NHS Sussex and 

partner trusts are subject to a general legal duty to involve each Health 
and Wellbeing Board.

• NHS Sussex and partner trusts must send a draft of the Shared 
Delivery Plan to each Health and Wellbeing Board when initially 
developing it or undertaking significant revisions or updates. They must 
consult those Health and Wellbeing Boards on whether the draft takes 
proper account of each joint local health and wellbeing strategy that 
relates to any part of the period to which the shared delivery plan 
relates – describing how NHS Sussex proposes to implement the joint 
health and wellbeing strategies.

• A Health and Wellbeing Board must respond with its opinion and may 
also send that opinion to NHS England, telling NHS Sussex and its 
partner trusts it has done so (unless it informed them in advance that it 
was planning to do so).

Role of NHS England
• NHS England will review and comment on the draft shared delivery 

plan, and recommend this is done in parallel with the review by Health 
and Wellbeing Boards. This is not a formal assurance process but an 
opportunity to support NHS Sussex and their partner trusts to develop 
their plans.

Role of Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees
• NHS Sussex and their partner trusts should expect to be held to 

account for its delivery – including by their population, patients and 
their carers or representatives and in particular through the Sussex 
Health and Care Assembly, Healthwatch and the local authorities’ 
health overview and scrutiny committees.

Sign off process for the Shared Delivery Plan

• NHS Sussex and their partner trusts should agree processes 
for finalising and signing off the Shared Delivery Plan. The 
final version must be published.

Annual updates & revision of the plan

• NHS Sussex and partner trusts should review their shared 
delivery plan before the start of each financial year, by 
updating or confirming that it is being maintained for the next 
financial year. It may also revise the plan in-year if considered 
necessary.

• The annual refresh of shared delivery plans allows them to be 
iterated and provides the opportunity for further engagement 
and collaboration, as well as the opportunity to continue to 
reflect the most appropriate delivery mechanisms and 
partners’ actions.

• If NHS Sussex and its partner trusts update the shared 
delivery plan, in a way they consider to be significant, the 
same requirements regarding engagement and consultation 
will apply.

P
age 38



Developing our ambition for a healthier future

Timeline Council Meetings 
WorkshopSussex ICB Meeting SLF Deadline

30 June 2023
Final sign off 

of SDP

4 January 2023 
NHS Sussex 
Board Meeting 
Receiving the ICP 
Strategy

27 
February
2023
Strategy 
delivery 
workshop 

12 January 
2023 
SLF 

9 February 
2023 
SLF 

31 March 
2023
First draft 
of SDP

9 March 
2023 
SLF 

7 March 2023
East Sussex 
Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

7 March 2023
Brighton and 
Hove Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

13 April 2023 
SLF 

27 April 
2023
West Sussex 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board

11 May 2023 
SLF 

03 May 2023 NHS 
Sussex Board 
Meeting 
Update on 
development of 
SDP

17 May 2023
Sussex Health 
and Care 
Assembly 

07 June 
2023 
ICB 
Semina
r

8 June 2023 
SLF 

June 2023 
PROPOSED  NHS 
Sussex Board 
Meeting 
Sign off of final SDP

29 June 
2023
East Sussex 
HOSC

Sussex 
Health and Care Assembly

Phase 1: Initial Drafting Phase 2: Final Editing and Sign off 

1 March 
2023 NHS 
Sussex Board 
Meeting 

29 March  
2023 
NHS 
Sussex 
Board 
Meeting 

HOSC Meetings available in March and April as a potential opportunity for visibility scrutiny (Esx 02/03, WSx 08/03, B&H 12/04)

PROPOSED: Weekly updates through the informal executive weekly meetings 

14 June 
2023
West 
Sussex 
HOSC

P
age 39



P
age 40



 

 

Annex: East Sussex - integrated care in 
communities 
 

Our population health and care needs 
 
In summary, the following characteristics of our population significantly drive our 

local plans for integrated health and care in our communities: 

 Our growing and ageing population - by 2026 almost one in four people (24%) 

will be aged 65-84, and more than 4% of our population will be over 85. 

Added to this by 2028, around 20,000 more people in East Sussex will be 

living with two or more long term health conditions than was the case a 

decade earlier.   

 Increasing numbers of children and young people with Education, Health and 

Care Plans, some of whom will have complex medical and care needs; and 

growing levels of need and complexity in relation to safeguarding for children 

and young people  

You can read more about East Sussex, its strengths and challenges and our plans 

overall in our Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy and the summary in Appendices 

of the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy. 

In response, we have worked together to offer joined up care that can enable more 

support for complex needs in community settings, across all age groups.  For 

children and young people this has meant:  

 An integrated service for 0-5 year olds including health visitors, family 

keyworkers, communication support workers.  

 Multidisciplinary staff teams for youth offending, specialist family service 

(SWIFT) assessments, young people’s substance misuse services, and 

mental health services for children in care and adopted children.  

 An integrated Single Point of Advice and front door joining early help, social 

care and mental health 

 Developing stronger links between mental health and emotional wellbeing 

services, and enabling access to shared information 

With more older people, which includes those who are frail and have multiple 

conditions, East Sussex is likely to have higher health and care needs than other 

areas of our size.  To help with this we have put in place a model of integrated care 

aimed at supporting independence, reducing avoidable admissions to hospital and 

improving discharge into community-based care.  This includes: 

 Health and Social Care Connect – a single gateway for community health and 

care queries open to staff and the public and operating 24/7/365 

 Joint Community Reablement – a partnership between Adult Social Care and 

Health providing short term rehabilitation and packages of care in people’s 

own homes after episodes of ill health or time in hospital 

Page 41

Appendix 3

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/policies/health-wellbeing-strategy


 

 

 Crisis response team – responding to certain health pathways as an 

alternative service to hospital  

 Discharge to assess – a joint approach to assessing people in short-term 

beds or their own home rather than hospital  

 Integrated health and social care teams – community nursing and social work 

services aligned and sometimes co-located, with integrated management 

arrangements and working with local GP surgeries, care homes and home 

care agencies. 

Alongside key voluntary sector and housing services, and support for carers and 

families, this joined up offer of care contributes to enabling people to live 

independently and well, for as long as possible in their own homes. 
 

How we’d like to build on this - integrated health, care and 
wellbeing in our communities 
 

Our next steps as the East Sussex Health and Care Partnership will be to build on 
these strengths to expand the integrated community model for our population in the 
following ways: 
 

 Designing and agreeing an approach for working together in our communities 
across primary care, community healthcare, education, social care, mental 
health, and the full range of local voluntary and community and housing 
organisations, driven by a deeper shared understanding of local needs 

 

 Making sure we keep strengthening our offer of integrated care. For children 
and young people this is about working with whole families (including through 
the Family Safeguarding model), and linking ever more closely with early 
years settings, schools and colleges. For adults this includes further 
developing Trusted Assessor roles, rapid crisis response and support with 
discharges from hospital, as well as exploring ways to build more integrated 
leadership and roles to deliver better coordinated care 
 

 To support improved population health overall and therefore the years of life 
people spend in good health, we’ve agreed our model needs to link strongly 
with the wider services in local areas that impact on social and economic 
wellbeing as well.  This includes leisure, housing and environment services 
provided by borough and district councils and others.  
 

Our partnership plans to embed hubs in communities to help coordinate access to 
local sources of support and activities will be a key part of this model, for example to 
boost emotional wellbeing and help with loneliness and isolation. We also want to 
develop our plans for using our power as employers and buyers of services to 
stimulate economic and social wellbeing in our communities. This model will bring: 
 

 Greater capacity in communities to promote mutual support, and deeper 
levels of joined up and personalised care, building on the strengths and 
assets of individuals, families and communities  

 Greater levels of prevention, early intervention and ways to anticipate health 
and care needs  

Page 42



 

 

 New ways to remove the barriers that prevent staff and volunteers working in 

different teams from working together on the ground.  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Improving health outcomes:
Summary of opportunities analysis

23 February 2023

East Sussex Health and Care Partnership

P
age 45

A
ppendix 4



Why? Impact on strategic outcomes and system 

East Sussex Health and Social Care System Partnership Board 

Strategic 
outcome / 
system impact

Conditions of focus for East Sussex 

Mental Health  CVD Respiratory Disease Frailty

Life expectancy (LE) 
premature mortality
(generally worse in 
more deprived areas) 

• People with SMI have 15-20 year 
shorter life expectancy 

• Excess CVD mortality for adults with SMI 
= 374%

• Biggest cause of inequality in 
LE ~2.4 years for men and 1.5 
for women

• 352 premature deaths in 2020

• 3rd biggest cause of inequality in 
LE ~ 1.2 years men, 0.6 years 
women

• 153 premature deaths in 2020 of 
which 50 preventable

• Increasing population of old 
people

• As a result of LE increasing 
faster than HLE – more people 
anticipated to be frail and / or 
have multiple illnesses

Healthy life 
expectancy (HLE) and 
years lived with 
disability (generally 
worse in more 
deprived areas) 

• Physical health conditions start much 
younger in people with SMI

• Anxiety and depression reduce HLE
• Mental disorders 2nd biggest 

contributor to years lived with disability 

• Contributes to years lived with 
disability (10th highest)

• Hypertension, atrial fibrillation, 
heart attack and stable angina 
associated with poor self-
reported health ( part of HLE) 

• Chronic respiratory disease 
contributes to 13307 years 
disability adjusted life years in ES 
in 2019

• Frailty associated with reduced 
ability to carry out  normal 
daily activities, as well  as 
reduced ability to recover from 
illness or accidents

System impact / 
challenges

• Affects children as well as adults
• Long waiting times for CYP
• Intersectionality with LD and Autism 

Spectrum Disorder, Dementia
• Impacts on management of other long 

term conditions inc. CVD and respiratory
• Workforce shortages
• Low uptake of SMI health checks

• Under detection and 
management of hypertension, 
AF, hypercholesteremia and 

• Requires significant additional 
primary care capacity 

• Long lead in for population 
level benefits of improved 
detection and management

• Under detection of COPD, 
particularly in risk groups

• Emergency admissions and 
readmissions for acute 
exacerbations

• How is increasing uptake of 
immunisations / reducing acute 
exacerbations going 
(Core20Plus5?) 

• Prevention, delay and reducing 
rate of development possible –
but needs multi-stakeholder 
approach

• Potentially large number of 
people already frail who need 
more support 

• Workforce – capacity and ways 
of working with all partners

Other • Wider societal impact on families, 
schools, police, employers, staff, 

• Primary prevention of CVD also 
reduces risk of respiratory 
disease, dementia and others

• 90% of COPD caused by smoking
• Exacerbated by cold homes 

• Impacts on families and friends

P
age 46



Proposed approaches 

East Sussex Health and Care Partnership

Health Outcomes Improvement Oversight Board 
to focus on the conditions that are significantly leading to poorer healthy life expectancy and 

inequalities in life expectancy in our population and are amenable to measurable change: 

No issue can be resolved by a single organisation working on their own:  
Developing integrated working in East Sussex and coordinating the use of learning from 

significant programmes aimed at increasing capacity and capability of our system working at 

Place to embed:

• A life course approach (from pre-conception to death)

• Prevention: from wider determinants (causes of poor health) through to tertiary prevention 

(recovery from ill health or injury and reducing risk of relapse) 

• Right services, right time, right place (for the right people)

• Reducing inequalities in health outcomes

• Identifying right people and organisation to be involved in designing interventions and 

improvements at each level of intervention – universal, targeted and specialist

• Including citizens, professionals, services, communities 

Four topic specific workshops to be held in Q1 2023/24 to refine understanding of 

issues, opportunities for change and improvement and develop plans for improving 

outcomes through working collaboratively and in a joined up way 

The next slide is one way of looking at the range of factors to consider, and proposes 

some questions to work through in the workshops 

• Mental health • CVD

• Respiratory disease • Frailty 

Strategic steering group for Population Health Management

To enable all four of the oversight Boards through bringing together intelligence 
and insight 

• Using population segmentation and risk stratification to inform planning and 
prioritisation 

• Recognising geographical variation in need and existing provision

• Understanding / identifying what would significantly impact service 
utilisation and demand

P
age 47



Prevention : from wider determinants to reducing readmissions 

4

CVD

Identifying and 
managing risk at 

place

Common risks
Tackling these will contribute to improving health outcomes in medium to 
long term
Behavioural risks strongly influenced by  psychosocial and wider 
determinants.  Risk factors tend to be higher in deprived areas 

Respiratory

Frailty

Mental Health

Behavioural risk factors

• smoking

• alcohol

• substance misuse

• poor diet

• low fruit and veg 

• Being inactive 

• Not enough physical activity 

• Excess weight 

• What is specifically is 
causing concern for 
people, services, public?  

• What is driving 
readmissions? 

• What would help reduce 
readmissions? 

• Who needs to be 
involved? 

• Who is most at risk? 
(risk stratification
models) 

• Do we have all the data 
to help inform 
decisions?

• Where are 
opportunities to 
identify and manage 
these risks?

• Are services reaching 
the right people?

• Who isn’t being 
identified?

• Are services seeing 
people at right time? 

• Who can do this?

• Age,
• Multimorbidity

Psychosocial risk factors

• Loneliness, social isolation

• Stress, lack of control 

• Health literacy

• Discrimination, stigma, racism

Wider determinants 

• Housing 

• (Un)Employment 

• Access to healthy food

• Environmental hazards

• Air pollution

• Access to green space, ability 
for active travel 

Conditions 
See slide 4 for 

geographical need

• What are roles of different 
stakeholders in addressing risk 
factors? What can I do? 

• Where is issue best addressed 
e.g. county, district, locality?

• Who do I need to talk to? Who 
else is working o this?

Effects accumulate across life course

Condition specific 
risks 

Undetected /unmanaged: 
• hypertension
• raised cholesterol
• raised blood sugar
• atrial fibrillation 

• How do we best support people to build knowledge, skills and confidence to  manage 
their condition and live well? 

• How to integrate care and reduce unplanned admissions and readmissions 

• What else do we need to address to improve outcomes?  

• Are there pathways from clinical services to  
support in community?

• Are services working together around patients? 
• How do we best support people to stay well? 
• Are resources allocated effectively between  

prevention and treatment to get maximum 
benefit? 

Treating ill health and 
reducing risk of 

recurrence 

• Asthma (also risk for 
COPD)

• Access to spirometry 
• Low uptake of flu, 

pneumococcal vaccines 

• Poor attachment
• Abuse, trauma, neglect
• Long term poor health 

Proposed questions for planning and addressing at  workshops 

P
age 48



High level identification of need by 
place

East Sussex Health and Care Partnership

Condition Indicator Geography / outlier

Eastbourne Hastings Lewes Rother Wealden

CVD Mortality <75 x

Mortality >65 x

Alcohol-related CVD mortality x

Hypertension management x x x x x

Respiratory Mortality <75 x x

COPD mortality x

Smoking x x

Air quality x x

Mental Health Estimated prevalence of common mental disorders  in people aged over 16 x

Suicide X 

Self harm admissions X X X

Frailty Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in people over 65 x X X X X

Emergency readmissions within 30 day discharge x x

Preventable sight loss- sight loss certification

This slide shows the districts or boroughs in East Sussex where Public Health Outcomes 

Framework outcomes relating to key conditions of focus are worse than the England average, 

and are therefore offer greatest opportunity to reduce inequalities and improve outcomes .  

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

DRAFT Sussex Strategic Delivery Plan (SDP) – East Sussex Place High Level Milestone Plan 

1) Our shared vision 

Our East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board’s vision is to protect and improve health and wellbeing and reduce health inequalities in East Sussex, so that 
everyone has the opportunity to have a life that is as safe, healthy, happy and fulfilling as possible. Through our work together we want to promote health and 
wellbeing for everyone, make sure those who need it benefit from care and support that intervenes early, works with their strengths and supports their resilience 
as much as possible. 

Our Sussex Integrated Care Strategy and East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy align around a shared vision where in the future, health and care 
organisations will work in a more joined-up way with and within communities to better understand and respond to their specific needs. Support and services will 
be shaped around local people, rather than expect them to fit into the ‘system’. When we say communities, we mean both the local area people live in and also 
communities that we know people identify with, such as those with the same interest, beliefs, or way of life. 

2) Delivering our vision 

Delivering this involves a collaborative approach across all of our organisations that deliver services to improve health, reduce health inequalities and deliver 
integrated care for our population.  In East Sussex we have committed to some shared priorities and work based on the needs and assets in our population and 
the factors that influence people’s overall health and ability to stay healthy, in addition to improving outcomes through integrated health and care.  The focus of 
our shared work is aimed at increasing prevention and early intervention and delivering personalised, integrated care.  

The next steps for our East Sussex Health and Care Partnership will be to build on our existing work to enhance the integrated community model for our 
population that will better enable health, care and wellbeing for people and families across the whole of life.  This will mean designing a model that best enables:  

 Working together in our communities across primary care, community healthcare, education, social care, mental health, and the full range of local 
voluntary and community and housing organisations, and using our collective resources driven by a deeper shared understanding of local needs 

 Strengthening our offer of integrated care. For children and young people this is about working with whole families (including through the Family 
Safeguarding model), and linking ever more closely with early years settings, schools and colleges. For adults this includes further developing Trusted 
Assessor roles, rapid crisis response and support with discharges from hospital, as well as exploring ways to build more integrated leadership and roles 
to deliver better coordinated care 

 A clear focus on improving population health overall and the years of life people spend in good health.  Our model needs to link strongly with the wider 

services in local areas that impact on social and economic wellbeing.  This includes leisure, housing and environment services provided by borough and 

district councils and others 
 

Our partnership plans to embed networks and hubs in communities to help coordinate access to local sources of practical support and activities will be a key part 

of this model, for example through boosting emotional wellbeing and helping with loneliness and isolation. We also want to develop our plans for using our power 

as employers and buyers of services to stimulate economic and social wellbeing in our communities. Overall this model will bring: 
 

 Greater capacity in our communities to promote mutual support, and deeper levels of joined up and personalised care, building on the strengths and 
assets of individuals, families and communities  

 Greater levels of prevention, early intervention and ways to proactively respond to prevent situations getting worse 

P
age 51

A
ppendix 5



 

 

 New ways to remove the barriers that prevent staff and volunteers working in different teams from working together on the ground, better supporting 

people with long-term complex care needs and their carers in their own homes, care homes and other community settings including when people are at 

the end of their lives 

Our strong focus in 2023/24 will be to mobilise our collective resources and work more closely in our communities and neighbourhoods across all of our teams 
and services, aligning with and contributing to the ambition and key success factors set out in the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy.  Through developing our 
plans to underpin delivery of these shared priorities in 2023/24 we will support our wider Sussex Integrated Care System to deliver improvement plans for NHS 
urgent and emergency care services, the ongoing recovery of planned and elective care and better access to services.     
 

2023/24 2023/24 High level milestone plan 
 

Aim:  Improve health outcomes in the following areas: CVD, respiratory disease, mental health and frailty/aging well 

Actions Quarterly milestones Current position  Measure of success Y1  Measure of success Y5  

1) Co-design and 
deliver whole 
system and 
pathway action 
plans for CVD, 
respiratory 
disease, mental 
health and 
frailty/ageing well 

Q1: Design and hold four stakeholder 
workshops to map and understand the 
opportunities and key areas of focus 
 
Q2: Agree whole system ‘plan on a 
page’ for each area, and implement 
identified immediate improvements to 
support Winter planning and 
approaches to capturing and 
measuring impacts 
 
Q3: Mobilise implementation of PDSA 
activity  
 
Q4: Evaluate and review progress and 
impacts to inform plans for 2024/25 
 

 Initial analysis 
undertaken for the four 
proposed areas 

 Proposed approach 
developed and work 
underway to evolve our 
partnership and 
programme governance 
to support delivery 

 Early measurable 
improvements to pathways 
ahead of Winter 

 Proactive care leading to 
shifts away from acute 
hospital activity towards 
prevention and early 
intervention 
 

Health and Wellbeing 
Board Strategy Shared 
Outcomes Framework: 

 Improved population 
health and reduced 
inequalities 

 Improved experience of 
care 

 Improved quality of care 

 Transformed services for 
sustainability  

Aim: Enhance our offer of joined up health, care and wellbeing in communities and neighbourhoods 

Actions Quarterly milestones Current position  Measure of success Y1 Measure of success Y5 

1) Co-design and 
deliver a ‘proof of 
concept’ exercise 
for delivering 
joined up health, 
care and 
wellbeing initially 
focussed on the 
Hastings area, 

Q1: Map the existing projects and 
funding streams focussed on Hastings.  
Convene a meeting with a range of 
local frontline teams to explore what is 
working well currently, and agree the 
areas of focus for a strengthened 
joined up offer that can adapt where 
appropriate to specific local population 
challenges 

 Initial proposed approach 
explored for wider review 
and discussion with system 
partners. 

 Agreed approach to be 
evolved further as a key 
programme of work to be 
taken forward through the 

 Proof of concept: joined up 
approach to planning and 
delivering health, care and 
wellbeing modelled and 
delivered in Hastings, phased 
plan in place and underway to 
roll out the approach across 
the county  

Health and Wellbeing 
Board Strategy Shared 
Outcomes Framework: 

 Improved population 
health and reduced 
inequalities 

 Improved experience of 
care 

P
age 52



 

 

building on 
existing 
partnership 
projects and 
activity there 

2) Identify early 
quick wins and 
develop a 
phased plan to 
support wider roll 
out for the whole 
County 

 
Q2: Plan and deliver small-scale PDSA 
exercises to test different ways of 
working and further inform what is 
needed to enable teams to better work 
together 
 
Q3: Use PDSA outcomes to begin to 
model functional and resource 
requirements to support a locality-
based framework for planning and 
delivering services as BAU delivery 
 
Q4: Evaluate and review progress and 
impacts to support further phases of 
implementation in 2024/25 

East Sussex Community 
Oversight Board 
 

 Improved quality of care 

 Transformed services for 
sustainability 

 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to:  East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:   7 March 2023  

By:   Healthwatch East Sussex  

Title:   Eastbourne Listening Tour draft report 

Purpose of Report:   To share learning from the Healthwatch East Sussex ‘Listening 

Tour’ which took place over two weeks in October 2022 

 

Recommendations: 

East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to note the findings and 

recommendations in the report. 

 

1 Background and supporting information 

1.1 Healthwatch gather people’s views of health and social care services in East 

Sussex and make sure they are heard by the people in charge. Each year we focus 

on one area of East Sussex to engage with local people and understand their 

communities in more detail. For 2022 our Listening Tour wanted to hear from 

residents in Eastbourne, from the 15
th
 to the 30

th 
October.  

 
1.2 We used a wide variety of engagement activities and events to ask people 
about their experiences of health and care, including surveys and online 
engagement, discussion groups, pop up stands in various locations and specially 
organised events.  

1.3 We will use the feedback received throughout the tour to make 
recommendations to support positive changes to local health and care services. 

1.4 A presentation on the Eastbourne Listening Tour which contains more 
information on the Listening Tour, and the key findings, conclusions and 
recommendations in the draft report is contained in appendix 1. 

2 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

2.1 The East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to note the 

findings and recommendations in the report. 

 

 

VERONICA KIRWAN / JOHN ROUTLEDGE 

Healthwatch East Sussex 

 

Contact Officer: John Routledge 

Email: john.routledge@escv.org.uk  

Tel: 01323 403590 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

mailto:john.routledge@escv.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT Eastbourne Listening Tour 
October 2022

P
age 57

A
ppendix 1



Healthwatch gather people’s views of health 
and social care services in East Sussex and 
make sure they are heard by the people in 
charge.

Each year we focus on one area of East Sussex 
to engage with local people and understand 
their communities in more detail. For 2022 our
Listening Tour wanted to hear from residents in 
Eastbourne, from the 15th to the 30th October. 

We used a wide variety of engagement 
activities and events to ask people about their 
experiences of health and care, including 
surveys and online engagement, discussion 
groups, pop up stands in various locations and 
specially organised events. 

We will use the feedback received throughout 
the tour to make recommendations to support 
positive changes to local health and care 
services.

Our aims were to:

 Raise the profile of Healthwatch amongst 

the public (especially diverse communities), 

community groups and service providers.

 Use the feedback gained to understand 

local issues and seek positive developments 

in health and care services.

 Gain a wide range of feedback from all 

parts of society to relay to the local health 

and care system and Healthwatch England.

 Make sure that we listen to as diverse a 

cross-section of society as we can and that 

everyone’s voices are heard.

 Maximise the opportunities that people in 

Eastbourne have to be heard so that they 

feel listened to.

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 2

Introduction
Our rationale for our 2022 Listening Tour

P
age 58



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 3

What we heard – Our key findings
Health and Care Services

• We heard about people’s appreciation for the NHS, especially being free at 
the point of access, the range of services offered and the ability to move 
between them. People also told us positive examples of how the NHS had 
helped them with support, advice, treatment and procedures, with a good 
quality of care and desired outcomes. Services which received positive 
comment included Covid Vaccination, Pharmacies and GP Practices.

• Feedback highlighted people’s appreciation for the expertise, 
professionalism and compassion of staff in the NHS and wider health and 
care services. 

• Of the comments received on people’s experiences of health services over 
the last 12 months: 37.1% expressed a negative sentiment, 32.9% highlighted 
a mixed sentiment and 25.7% a positive sentiment.

• We asked people (390) about their levels of confidence in accessing 
health and care services when they need them. Of those 
responding, we heard that: 41.6% were Very/Quite Confident,
32.3% were Unsure and 16.7% were Not Confident at all. We 
received No response from 9.5% people.

P
age 59



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 4

What we heard – Our key findings

Health and Care Services

• The most common frustrations with the NHS were waiting times and delays, 
causing negative impacts on people’s physical and mental wellbeing. 

• The most desired improvements were GPs, Dentists, NHS 111, mental health 
support and A&E departments, reduced waiting times, CAMHS, improved 
facilities, and a greater focus on improved wellbeing education and self-
help. Other improvements related to communication (including between 
services) and improved quality of care and treatment. 

• We asked people ‘If you could change one thing to improve your health 
and wellbeing, what would it be?’. In order of frequency of response, they 
told us: 
More physical activity/exercise; Improvements in support services; Change 
diet or food habits; Lose weight; Maintain interaction with friends/family.

P
age 60



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 5

What we heard – Our key findings

Access to Services

• People told us about the challenges they often experienced when 
accessing health and care services. This included a lack of suitable 
adaptations to buildings, especially for those with disabilities or impairments. 
For example, wheelchair access, suitable lighting, braille signs etc.  

• Some issues were identified in the feedback from specific user groups (e.g.
homeless, migrant communities etc.) about the barriers they face, including 
language and translation services, often due to a lack of awareness about 
their rights and the duties and responsibilities to respond to them. 

• A lack of awareness and understanding from health and care providers is 
felt by people from protected characteristic groups *, such as assumptions 
made about someone’s sexuality, information being communicated in an 
inaccessible format or financial limitations not being taken into account. 

*age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation

P
age 61



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 6

What we heard – Our key findings

Care services

• We heard that the five most identified care services needing improvements 
were: Home care, Support to live independently, Dementia services, 
Community-based Services (charities, support services for certain groups 
such as homeless, refugees and asylum seekers) and Residential 
Care/Nursing Home.

• We heard there is a lack of consistent public understanding about the 
provision of care services, and the responsibilities of different organisations
to deliverg them. The greatest proportion of people told us the NHS would 
be their first port-of-call for advice about care, rather than the local 
authority. People also thought they would pay if they or a loved one went 
into a care home, with very few being aware of support from ESCC. 

P
age 62



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 7

What we heard – Our key findings

Cost of living crisis

• We heard about changes to people’s behaviour since the cost-of-living 
crisis began in 2022. Changes identified by our 390 survey respondents 
included: 

» 51.3% telling us that they had become more anxious about the future. 

» 34.4% had good quality sleep less often.

» 25.4% ordered fast food or takeaways on a less regular basis.

» 24.1% had socialised with friends and family less regularly.

» 21.0% felt lonely, in part due to changes in other behaviours.

» 19.2% engaged in physical activity less often.

» 13.6% consumed alcohol less regularly.

• Community services are highly valued by their users and play an 
important role in supporting members of the public, each providing 
various benefits such as food, warmth, socialising, financial advice, 
immigration advice and more.

P
age 63



What we did

We meet people where they are.

Throughout the Listening Tour both a long and short survey were 
made available to residents which asked about their experiences of 
health and care services. These were available to complete at the 
various locations at our pop ups.

A postal drop of surveys in multiple wards of Eastbourne took place 
to reach out to as many residents as possible. The long survey could 
also be completed online. 

Focus groups were organized to speak with members from local 
voluntary sector organisations in order to gather some in depth-
feedback from under-represented groups. 

We also held our own events to gather feedback such as a launch 
event, an art and wellbeing session and a live Q&A event to give 
residents the opportunity to ask questions directly to decision 
makers.

489 responses were received by the 13th November deadline. 

The findings from the Listening Tour are outlined in this report along 
with recommendations to make positive changes to Eastbourne’s 
health and care services.

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 8

Our methodology

P
age 64



Healthwatch Events:

• Community Observation Walks

• The Listening Tour kicked off with our launch 

event.

• Art and wellbeing session in Gather.

• The Big Health and Care Question Time.

Pop ups:

• Supermarkets- Morrisons, ASDA

• Langney Shopping Centre

• Gather (in The Beacon Shopping Centre)

• Eastbourne and Hampden Park Libraries

• Eastbourne District General Hospital

• Victoria Medical Centre and Digital First

• Pub quiz at The Crown and Anchor

• Age Concern

• The Job Centre

One to one conversations:

• Homeless outreach (Jevington Gardens 

Temporary Accommodation), Warming Up the 

Homeless, Kingdom Way Trust, Salvation Army)

• Food Bank

• Bourne This Way (LGBTQ+ parent support 

group)

• Sanctuary Café (Refugees and asylum seekers)

• Salvation Army Older People’s Lunch

• East Sussex Hearing

Focus Groups:

• Eastbourne Blind Society

• Accessibility Discussion Group (at Defiant 

Sports)

Commuter postcard drop at Eastbourne station.

Eastbourne Listening Tour 

2022

9

Context
Where we went

P
age 65



Our Engagement Reports

P
age 66



Our Engagement Activity
To provide more in-depth findings on each of our engagement activities we have 
produced separate reports for each of them. The links to each of these reports can be 
found below, however if required, please request details for hardcopies.

Observation Walks Report

Healthwatch East Sussex organised two Observation 
Walks around areas of social deprivation in Eastbourne
with partners from the borough council, local organisations, the
NHS and Adult Social Care. These were to understand
how aspects of the environment in these areas have 
an impact on residents’ health. 

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 11

P
age 67



Our Engagement Activity
Homeless Truths Report

Our volunteers and staff engaged with residents at Jevington Gardens Emergency and 
Temporary Accommodation to understand their needs, experiences of accessing health 
and care services and other support, as well as how their health and wellbeing may be 
affected by living at such sites.

"I’m glad to have a place, but some things are difficult"

“I’m very worried about the little one and we need a new place [to live] to help with 
health, but no one seems to be listening” 

Homelessness Report

We engaged with service users at Warming up the Homeless, Kingdom Way Trust and 
Salvation Army to gain feedback from residents of Temporary and Emergency 
Accommodation and rough sleepers about their experiences of health and care. 

“GP said they are going to help with mental health. They haven’t organized 
appointment yet.”

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 12

P
age 68



Our Engagement Activity

Long and Short Survey Reports

Throughout the Listening Tour we ran a long and short survey to gain feedback from 
residents in Eastbourne about their local health and care services. The long survey 
provided us with more in-depth feedback from those who were happy to use a bit more 
time to complete it such as at our Launch Event, as well as being posted around various 
areas of Eastbourne to residents’ homes. The short survey was used more at pop ups for 
quick engagement. 

“Pharmacy first port of call in most instances - excellent service. GP welcoming, 
genuinely cares.”

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 13

P
age 69



Our Engagement Activity

Commuter Survey Report

Early in the morning on two days of the Listening Tour we handed out commuter survey 
postcards at Eastbourne Train Station for residents to complete on their train journey to 
work. 

“Can't get NHS dentist appointment - hasn't had dentist in 6 years. Moved here from 
Brighton, no-one in Eastbourne is taking patients.”

Protected Characteristic Groups Report

Healthwatch East Sussex worked with various local organisations to hear from residents of 
protected characteristic groups. We wanted to give everyone a voice in the Listening 
Tour, so these were opportunities for members of the community to be heard who may 
not usually be heard. 

“Too many doctors see you and don’t understand any of your existing issues, you waste 
so much time constantly explaining. They need to coordinate.”

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 14

P
age 70



Our Engagement Activity

Food Bank Report

Eastbourne Food Bank welcomed us at two of their food banks (in the town centre and 
in Langney) to talk with residents who use this service about their health and care 
experiences, and how the Cost-of-Living Crisis is having an impact. 

“They're [Food Bank] helpful and they listen and they try their best to help.” 

The Big Health and Care Question Time Report

Towards the end of our Listening Tour, Healthwatch East Sussex ran a live Question and 
Answer event for residents to ask their questions directly to six panelists (local decision 
makers in health and care). 

“It was really good to have the opportunity to hear from our local NHS and social care 
leaders”

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 15

P
age 71



Our Engagement Activity

End of Life Care Survey Report

The engagement team at St Wilfrid’s Hospice joined Healthwatch East Sussex at the 
Launch event and various other engagement activities during the Listening Tour. They 
produced their own survey on residents’ experiences of end-of-life care. 

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 16

P
age 72



Our Conclusions and 
Recommendations

P
age 73



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 18

Conclusions

• We heard about positive health and care outcomes being experienced by 
Eastbourne residents and providers working hard to deliver them. The public 
appreciate this, especially during periods of great pressure, such as the 
COVID-19 pandemic and winter pressures, with particular praise highlighted 
for delivery of the COVID vaccination programme.

• Of concern is the impact that delays and waiting times for services have on 
people’s confidence in getting support when they need it, especially 
urgent or emergency treatment, but increasingly also routine activity. This 
may lead to poorer health outcomes and disproportionately affect those 
already affected by health inequalities, especially in light of the cost of 
living crisis. These issues can also result in a negative reflection on services as  
shown by a majority of people feeling health and care services had got 
worse in the last 12 months.

• Our engagement indicated that some groups and communities feel that 
their needs could be better met and their ‘voice’ was often not heard. We 
heard that homeless people and migrants often feel this way, together with 
other groups with protected characteristics. Services do not adapt to 
meet their needs, despite repeatedly engaging them to determine 
what these are. This may make them less inclined to participate in 
discussions moving forwards.  

P
age 74



Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 19

Conclusions

• People told us of the importance of voluntary sector and community 
support for wellbeing. Local groups deliver flexible but targeted help and 
support, and serve as a link with statutory services. Opportunities to 
maximise their benefit could be improved and extended. Positive learning 
around the effectiveness of outreach, provision of adapted information and 
the need for non-digital communication channels could be shared.    

• We received limited feedback on social care services, and this will be a 
focus for future Healthwatch activity. A local focus on improving awareness 
may be beneficial in directing people to the right information in the fewest 
steps, as well as providing them with the right support to be able to live 
independently at home for as long as possible.  

• The cost-of-living crisis is having an impact on local people and we heard 
how they are changing their behaviours in response. Of concern is the 
increased anxiety about the future, isolation that may come from reduced 
socialisation and reductions in levels of physical activity, all of which may be 
generating additional pressures for individuals and increasing their 
need for support from services in the future. 

• Finally, we would like to thank the public, patients, staff and
partners who contributed to the planning and delivery of our
Listening Tour. 

P
age 75



Recommendations

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 20

Sussex Integrated Care System (ICS) 

1. The ICS should evaluate (potentially independently) public 
understanding of social care provision, eligibility and pathways, and 
take appropriate steps to raise and sustain awareness.

2. ICS commissioners and service providers should regularly and pro-
actively capture and share ‘positive’ feedback from patients and users 
to illustrate positive outcomes and support staff and public confidence. 
To support this, feedback mechanisms should be promoted and 
accessible.

3. The ICS should evaluate the system-wide contribution made by 
voluntary organisations and community groups in increasing 
prevention, improving wellbeing and reducing demand on reactive 
health and care services in the population. They should also take steps 
to strengthen collaboration with voluntary organisations and 
community groups to sustain local-level information sharing, advice 
and interventions.

P
age 76



Recommendations

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 21

Sussex Integrated Care System (ICS) 

4. To create inclusivity within services, Sussex Health and Care should adhere 
to the Equality Act 2010 and NHS Accessible Information Standard to:

• (in discussion with local partners and local populations) regularly review, 
develop and improve their performance for people with characteristics 
protected by the Equality Act 2010 as part of their Public Sector Equality 
Duty.

• focus on providing clear, consistent and accessible information to patients 
and the public, with services required to demonstrate adherence on a 
regular basis. Lay evaluations should also be embedded.  

• increase Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) learning for all staff to 
support inclusive and unbiased treatment of patients and the public. 
Feedback on services should be used to monitor performance.  

• minimise and mitigate limitations for residents in accessing services by:
ensuring access to interpreting and translation services, maximising
suitably adapted physical access to sites and providing appropriate 
low/no cost travel support or suitable virtual alternatives to minimise
financial exclusion. 

P
age 77

https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/patient-equalities-programme/equality-frameworks-and-information-standards/accessibleinfo/


Recommendations

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 22

5. Local authorities should work with local stakeholders to reinforce and 
improve the information made available to those with protected 
characteristics about their rights in relation to housing and other services 
that fall within their duties.

Healthwatch East Sussex

6. Healthwatch will share the findings and recommendations from our 2022 
Listening Tour with local and national partners and stakeholders to increase 
awareness of the health, care and wellbeing themes that were raised.

7. Healthwatch will continue to raise awareness of its role amongst residents, 
across East Sussex. This will be supported by attending community events 
and meetings, digital promotion and community engagement activities.

8. Healthwatch will act on its findings from the Eastbourne Listening Tour and 
explore the development of collaborative initiatives and projects that 
create local benefit.  

9. Healthwatch will monitor progress against its recommendations in this 
report and deliver a ‘One Year On’ event to provide an update on 
whether anything has changed and what has been implemented. 

10. Healthwatch should hold further Information and Signposting drop-ins at 
various Eastbourne sites so that all residents, especially those from seldom 
heard groups have an opportunity to receive advice and guidance.

P
age 78



Acknowledgements

• Healthwatch Volunteers

• South Downs Residential

• Warming up the Homeless

• Kingdom Way Trust

• The Salvation Army

• Eastbourne Food Bank

• Eastbourne Blind Society

• Age Concern

• St Wilfrid’s Hospice

• Sanctuary Café

• Defiant Sports

• Eastbourne Job Centre

• East Sussex Hearing

• Bourne This Way

• The Advocacy People

• Q&A Panelists

• NHS Sussex Public Involvement Team

• NHS 111

• Adult Social Care

• Primary Care Team

• Public Health

• One You East Sussex

• Care for the Carers

• Eastbourne District General Hospital

• Victoria Medical Centre

• Digital First- The Beacon Practice

• Gather

• FOUNDRY

• Morrisons

• ASDA

• Langney Shopping Centre

• Eastbourne Train Station

• Eastbourne Town Hall

• Eastbourne Library

• Hampden Park Library

• The Crown and Anchor Pub

• Job Centre

• Councillor Candy Vaughan

• Snap Fitness

• Pom and de Hommes

• Froggle Parties

Eastbourne Listening Tour 2022 23

Our Listening Tour resulted in a large amount of feedback from a  diverse cross section 
of the community which was thanks to the support of:

P
age 79



For more information
Healthwatch East Sussex
Freepost RTTT-BYBX-KCEY
Healthwatch East Sussex
Greencoat House
32 St Leonards Road
Eastbourne
East Sussex
BN21 3UT

www.healthwatcheastsussex.co.uk

@HealthwatchES

Facebook.com/HealthwatchESussex

t: 0333 101 4007

e: enquiries@healthwatcheastsussex.co.uk

P
age 80

http://www.healthwatcheastsussex.co.uk/


 

Report to:  East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:   7 March 2023  

By:   Director of Transformation and Improvement, ESHT  

Title:   Building for our Future Hospital Redevelopment Programme  

   update 

Purpose of Report:  To provide an update on East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust’s 

hospital redevelopment programme 

Recommendations: 

The East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to note the update on 

the status of East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust’s capital developments and plans for 

hospital redevelopment as part of the Government’s New Hospitals Programme. 

1 Background  

1.1 In October 2020 the Government announced details of 40 hospitals to be built by 2030 

with a further eight new schemes invited to bid for future funding, as part of the New 

Hospitals Programme (NHP). 

1.2 East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust (ESHT) is named as one of the Government’s 

NHP schemes and is part of Cohort 4 known as the ‘full adopters’.  

1.3 The Trust’s hospital redevelopment programme includes development of three hospital 

sites at Conquest Hospital, Eastbourne District General Hospital and Bexhill 

Community Hospital. 

1.4 ESHT has continued to progress its hospital redevelopment programme within the 

parameters set out by the NHP. Additionally, the Trust is making progress with other 

capital development projects that are aligned to the Trust’s long-term vision for 

improving hospital facilities. This update report sets out the progress being made. 

2 Update on the Building for our Future Hospital Redevelopment Programme 

2.1 Business case development: ESHT submitted a strategic outline case to NHSE for 

consideration in March 2021 and is waiting to hear from NHS England and the 

Department of Health and Social Care on the timescales and next steps. Further detail 

will likely be available in March 2023. 

2.2 Developing clinical models of care: Work is progressing at ESHT involving clinical 

and non-clinical stakeholders to refine the future clinical models of care to ensure that 

the plans reflect best practice in clinical care nationally and internationally. 

2.3 NHP Demand and capacity modelling: ESHT is collaborating directly with the NHP 

team to test and develop a model and approach for demand and capacity modelling 

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



 

with the aim of improving quality, consistency and transparency in demand and 

capacity modelling across the NHS. 

2.4 NHP Clinical workstream: ESHT’s Chief of Emergency and Urgent Care has been 

collaborating with the NHP and supporting the team in the development of clinical 

standards for new hospitals. The hospital redevelopment team also continue to work in 

collaboration with the NHP team to complete a clinical safety environmental impact 

assessment to consistently capture the clinical impact of estates and infrastructural 

issues across the Trust’s hospital sites. 

3 Update on other Trust capital developments 

3.1 Bexhill Community Diagnostics Hub: The brand new state of the art diagnostic 

centre located on Beeching Road in Bexhill-on-Sea was opened to patients in January 

2023.  

3.2 Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 3 (PSDS3): Work is underway and on track 

for completion in Spring 2023 for the decarbonisation project at EDGH. This includes 

installation of external aluminium cladding and insulation throughout the phase 1 

building at EDGH to improve building efficiency, in addition to installation of an electric 

heat pump heating system to replace the onsite boilers, and solar PV panels on an 

existing staff car park to provide renewable energy and reduce the carbon footprint of 

the site. 

3.3 Elective Hub at EDGH: The Trust plan is to build a new dedicated day surgery unit on 

the site of the previous Polegate ward at EDGH, which will comprise 4 new operating 

theatres and associated support facilities. The facility is planned to go live in 2024/25.  

4 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

4.1 The East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to note the update on 

the status of East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust’s capital developments and plans for 

hospital redevelopment as part of the Government’s New Hospitals Programme. 

 

CHARLOTTE O’BRIEN 

Director of Transformation and Improvement, East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust 

 

Contact Officer:  Tracey Rose 

 Programme Director Building for our Future Hospital Redevelopment 

Email:   tracey.rose@nhs.net  

 

Background documents 

NONE 

Page 82

mailto:tracey.rose@nhs.net


Report to:  East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date of meeting:  7 March 2023 

By:  Director of Public Health 

Title:  Pharmacy provision in East Sussex 

Purposes:  To inform the Health and Wellbeing Board of the implications to 

pharmacy provision in East Sussex in respect of Lloyds Pharmacy’s 

decision to close its outlets in Sainsburys Stores.  

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to: 

 

1. Note the impact on pharmaceutical provision in East Sussex of the Lloyds 
Pharmacy decision to close its outlets in Sainsburys stores; and  

2. Agree to Option 2 and to the issuing of a supplementary statement of the East 
Sussex Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment.  

 

1. Background 

1.1 Lloyds Pharmacy have announced that it is to close all pharmacies that are situated in 
branches of Sainsbury’s supermarkets. Some have been earmarked for closure within weeks of 
the announcement. In East Sussex there are three branches that will close, all of which provide 
pharmaceutical services for 100 hours per week. These are detailed in the table below.  

Lloyds Branch in 

Sainsburys 

Address Closure at end 

of trading day 

Lloyds St Leonard’s  John Macadam Way, St Leonard’s on Sea, TN37 7SQ 06/03/23 

Lloyds Newhaven Newhaven Harbour, The Drove, Newhaven, BN9 0AG  23/07/23 

Lloyds Eastbourne Broadwater Way, Hampden Park, Eastbourne, BN22 9PW  23/07/23 

 

1.2 Although the Director of Public Health has delegated authority to oversee these changes in 

provision, the scale, pace and potential impact of these changes should be brought to the attention 

of the Board. 

1.3 As from 1 April 2013 every Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in England has a statutory 

responsibility to publish and keep up to date a statement of the need for pharmaceutical services in 

its area, otherwise referred to as a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA). HWBs had to 

publish their first PNA by April 1st 2015. 

 

2.     What is the impact of the risk? 

2.1 These pharmacies provide a very small proportion of the activity within each of the lower-

tier local authority areas. As recorded in the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) in 2021/22 

this was: 2% in Hastings Borough, 2% in Lewes District, and 3% in Eastbourne Borough. [Source 

NHS].  

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



2.2 The proportion of total activity provided by these pharmacies in each of these local 

authorities has declined over the past three financial years. We do not have data on how much of 

the dispensing activity was carried out after 6 pm. 

2.3 In terms of the provision of consultation and advanced services, there was no activity in the 

St. Leonard’s branch, a notable amount of consultation service activity in the Newhaven branch, 

and less activity in the Eastbourne branch,  

2.4 Emergency Hormonal Contraception services are not provided at the St Leonard’s branch, 

whilst the Newhaven branch provided some activity, and although signed-up, the Eastbourne 

branch recorded no activity. 

3.      Are there alternative pharmacies nearby? 

3.1 In Hastings and St. Leonard’s, there are two pharmacies open within one mile. The next 

closest 100-hour pharmacy at Tesco’s Supermarket is open until 20:00 and until 16:00 Sundays. 

The Asda 100-hour pharmacy is open until 22:00 most days.  

 

3.2 In Lewes District, there is no other 100-hour pharmacy in the district. Other than Lloyds 

there is no other pharmacy open after 18:30 on weekday evenings, and there is one other 

pharmacy open on a Saturday afternoon. No other pharmacies are open apart from Lloyds on 

Sundays. 

 

3.3 In Eastbourne Borough, there is a Tesco, 100-hour pharmacy open nearby. Boots is open 

until midnight; and Asda is open until 20:00. 

 

4.      Options  

Option 1. Do nothing.  

4.1 This is seen as unacceptable in view of the magnitude of changes across the county. The 

urgent out-of-hours care service will provide immediately necessary treatment. These medicines 

can be dispensed from the out-of-hours service formulary. There is a danger of over-burdening this 

service if alternative provision is not established.  

Option 2. Issue a Supplementary Statement of the PNA.  

4.2 According to NHS England guidance, these closures by implication create a gap in 

provision. The gaps in essential and advanced services may or may not be filled by other 

providers. A supplementary statement would allow needs to be clearly defined so that 

commissioners can plan for appropriate provision and a permanent solution.  

Option 3. Implement a rota system out-of-hours.  

4.3 The East Sussex Residents’ survey in 2022 highlighted poor access to dispensing in 

evenings and weekends. A rota system is liable to cause confusion and is not seen as a 

permanent solution to the loss of these outlets. Any rota approach is likely to require agreement 

with neighbouring HWBs in Sussex, as rotas may refer residents to pharmacies in neighbouring 

areas.  

Page 84



Option 4. Declare a gap. 

4.4 There will be a gap evident in service provision in Newhaven from the end of July 2023. 

This option would only deal with the Newhaven issues and risks are also evident in Hastings and 

Eastbourne.   

5. Conclusion and Reason for Recommendation 

5.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is required by the NHS (Pharmaceutical and 

Pharmaceutical Services) 2013 Regulations to publish and keep up to date a statement of the 

need for pharmaceutical services in its area.  

5.2 Although the HWB has only recently (in September 2022) approved and published the 2022 

East Sussex Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, the closure of three 100-hour pharmacies, at 

short notice, represents a significant change in provision of services, and that this justifies the 

production of and issuing of a supplementary statement of the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

in order to provide clarity and inform future commissioning requirements.  

 
DARRELL GALE 

Director of Public Health 

Contact officer: Nick Kendall  
Email: nick.kendall@eastsussex.gov.uk 
Tel: 07523 930873  

 
 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 East Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme  

 

Date of Meeting Report 

18 July 2023 

East Sussex Health and Social Care Programme - update report 

Director of Public Health Annual report 

Healthwatch Annual Report 

Sussex learning from lives and deaths (LeDeR) Annual report 

Memorandum of Understanding between Public Health and Planning 

Creative health position paper – Public Health 

 

28 September 
2023 

East Sussex Health and Social Care Programme - update report  

Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) Annual Report 2022-23 

 

12 December 
2023 

East Sussex Health and Social Care Programme - update report 

East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership (ESSCP) Annual Report 2022-23 

Join Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Update report 

Making it Happen – Asset Based Community Development Paper - report from Public Health 

 

TBC NHS Health and Care Act (item from Cabinet agreeing MOU and formal participation in ICB). 

TBC Workshop meeting - to look at and agree milestones and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for monitoring on 
integrated health and social care partnership. 

TBC Children and Young People’s Mental Health programme. 

 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting of Health and Wellbeing Board held on 13 December 2022
	5 Integration programme and Shared Delivery Plan development update
	Appendix 1_JFP Guidance key points summary
	Appendix 2_Strategy and Shared Delivery PlanPP.DRAFT
	Improving Lives Together
	How the�Integrated Health & Care Strategy�was developed in partnership with stakeholders including citizens and our€workforce
	Sussex Strategy Development Principles
	Simplified governance structure for development and sign off of the Integrated Care Strategy
	Our engagement approach – endorsed by the Programme Board made up of Directors of Adult and Children's’ Services and Directors of Public Health
	Slide6
	Slide7
	Slide8
	Slide9
	Slide10
	Slide11
	Slide12
	Slide13
	Slide14
	Slide15
	Implementing the Sussex Integrated Care Strategy – A Shared Delivery Plan
	Slide17
	Slide18
	Slide19
	Slide20
	Slide21
	Slide22
	Timeline
	

	Appendix 3_IC Strategy excerpt_East Sussex integrated care in communities v 0.2 29 11 22
	Appendix 4_Improving health outcomes analysis summary 23 02 2023
	Slide 1: Improving health outcomes: Summary of opportunities analysis  23 February 2023 
	Slide 2: Why? Impact on strategic outcomes and system 
	Slide 3: Proposed approaches 
	Slide 4: Prevention : from wider determinants to reducing readmissions 
	Slide 5: High level identification of need by place

	Appendix 5_DRAFT High level Milestone Plan 2023 24 East Sussex V0.1 23 02 23

	6 Healthwatch East Sussex - Eastbourne Listening Tour report
	HWB 07Mar23 Item 6 - Appendix 1 Eastbourne Listening Tour report to HWB March 2023
	DRAFT Eastbourne Listening Tour 
	Introduction
	Slide3
	Slide4
	Slide5
	Slide6
	Slide7
	What we did
	Context
	Our Engagement Reports
	Our Engagement Activity
	Our Engagement Activity
	Our Engagement Activity
	Our Engagement Activity
	Our Engagement Activity
	Our Engagement Activity
	Our Conclusions and Recommendations
	Slide18
	Slide19
	Slide20
	Slide21
	Slide22
	Acknowledgements
	Slide24


	7 Building for our Future and ESHT hospital redevelopments
	8 Pharmacy Provision in East Sussex
	9 Work programme

